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Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by the 
Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor of State, 
regulations and grant requirements.  Beavercreek City School District is responsible for compliance with 
these laws and regulations. 
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December 29, 2021

To the Citizens and Board of Education of the Beavercreek City School District:

We are pleased to present the 20th annual Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (the report) of the
Beavercreek City School District, (the “District”). The information reported is for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021. The report contains financial statements, supplemental statements and other financial and
statistical information to provide complete and full disclosure of all material financial aspects of the
District for the 2020 2021 fiscal year.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained
in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this
purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements. Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness and fairness of this report rests with the
District and more specifically, the Office of the Treasurer. To the best of our knowledge and belief, this
report and the enclosed data are accurate in all material aspects. Our report is designed to present fairly
the financial position of the various funds of the District.

This report includes an unmodified (“clean”) audit report regarding the District’s financial statements. The
audit was conducted by Clark Schaefer Hackett, under contract by the Auditor of State’s Office and the
District. The Independent Auditors’ Report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

This report is prepared in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, (GAAP), as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other
recognized authoritative services, and is representative of the District's continuing commitment to
provide meaningful financial information to the citizens of the District.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and
provides a narrative, introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A
complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

i





The table below presents some pertinent information regarding the District’s school facilities.

School Building
Grade
Levels

Year
Constructed

Current
ADM

Estimated
Capacity

Beavercreek High 9 12 1954 1,643 1,980
Ferguson Hall 9 1960 540 894
Ankeney Middle 6 8 1969 673 962
Jacob Coy Middle 6 8 2013 998 1,150
Fairbrook Elementary K 5 1958 560 529
Valley Elementary K 5 1966 467 506
Parkwood Elementary K 5 1965 522 507
Shaw Elementary K 5 1967 629 679
Main Elementary K 5 1932 613 690
Trebein Elementary K 5 2013 800 700
Beavercreek Preschool PK 2015 213 144

* ADM based on 1/2 day pre k student count

Local Economy

The City of Beavercreek is the largest City within Greene County and has accessibility to major highways
including I 70, I 75, and I 675. It is also in close proximity to major metropolitan areas such as Dayton,
Cincinnati and Columbus. The local economy consists mainly of research based industries, some
manufacturing companies, an extensive retail base, and Wright Patterson Air Force Base. The tax base is
comprised of approximately 74% residential property. Over the past decade, the District’s assessed
property values have increased from $1.69 billion in 2012 to $2.09 billion in 2021.

Long term Financial Planning

The District continues to use the Strategic Plan updated in 2018. The Strategic Plan included working with
community leaders, parents, staff, and students to develop a plan to provide educational opportunities.
Key areas of the plan include student success, financial stability, operational improvements, and clear
communication over the next five years.

With this student focused strategic plan, the Beavercreek School District can improve, expand and
enhance current efforts, while continuing to incorporate new components that keep the District at a
premier level for their community.

In November 2021, the District completed and adopted its most recent five year financial forecast for
period fiscal year 2022 through 2026, as required by the Ohio Department of Education. Prepared for the
general operating fund only, this cash basis document forecasts cash receipts and cash disbursements for
the next five fiscal years, as well as the ending balance available to carry over to the next fiscal year. This
document is important to provide information to decision makers as it shows if available resources are
adequate to meet anticipated spending levels.
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As with any forecast, the further out amounts are forecasted, the less reliable the projections become.
This is particularly true about unrestricted State Foundation funding which is subject to change with each
State biennium budget. The current fiscal budget for the State of Ohio runs through June 30, 2023. In
addition, the State Foundation is based on a very complex and numerous different variables which are
difficult, at best, to project into the future.

Based on information available at the date the forecast was prepared, total receipts are anticipated to
increase by only 3.6% over the forecasted period if current district levies continue to renew. Unrestricted
State Foundation funding is projected to increase slightly same period. These two sources of receipts
accounted for approximately 95.0% of the total receipts received by the General Fund in fiscal year 2021.

Expenditures for wages and benefits of personnel were approximately 79.5% of the total General Fund
expenditures for fiscal year 2021. As such, accurately predicting and managing personnel related
expenditures are particularly important to provide a reliable forecast. Over the period covered by the
forecast, the District anticipates the personnel services expenditures to increase nearly 17.0% and
employee related benefits to increase by approximately 16.1%. Overall, total disbursements (including
other financing uses) of the General Fund are anticipated to increase approximately 15.8% through the
end of fiscal year 2026.

Relevant Financial Policies

The District’s accounting system is organized on a “fund” basis. Each fund is a distinct, self balancing
entity. Records for general governmental operations are maintained on a cash basis system of accounting
as prescribed by the Auditor of State. Cash basis of accounting differs from GAAP as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GAAP, as more fully described in the notes to the
financial statements, provides for a modified accrual basis of accounting for the general fund, special
revenue funds, debt service fund, and capital projects fund, and for full accrual basis of accounting for the
internal service and custodial funds.

Internal Controls

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to
ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements
in conformity with GAAP. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that those objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:
(1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from its implementation; and
(2) the valuation of cost and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Single Audit Act

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation bymanagement
of the District.
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Beavercreek City School District 

 
The district report meets the criteria established for  

ASBO International’s Certificate of Excellence. 
 
 

 

 

                                             

             W. Edward Chabal                                                                                      David J. Lewis 
       President                                                                                            Executive Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
Board of Education 
Beavercreek City School District  
3040 Kemp Road 
Beavercreek, Ohio 45431 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Beavercreek City School District (the “District”), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the Beavercreek City School District, Ohio, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary 
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 

 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and schedules of the District’s pension and OPEB amounts and contributions, as 
listed in the tables of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund 
financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules 
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 28, 
2021 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

  Clark, Schaefer, Hackett & Co.
Springfield, Ohio  
December 28, 2021 
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Management’s Discussion & Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Our discussion and analysis of Beavercreek City School District’s, (the District), financial performance
provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The
intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial performance as a whole; readers
should also review the basic financial statements and the notes to the basic financial statements to
enhance their understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights

At June 30, 2021, the District’s liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded its assets
and deferred outflows of resources by $74,367,925. This reported deficit can be attributed to
recognition of the District’s proportionate share of net pension and OPEB liabilities.
The District’s net position decreased by $4,456,960 compared with the $9,680,399 decrease
reported for the prior year. The overall decrease reported for the current year is attributed
primarily to the increases in net pension liability.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the general fund, the
District’s operating fund, was $16,848,282 or 17.4% of the general fund expenditures.
The District’s total bonded debt obligations, including accreted interest and unamortized
premiums, decreased by $667,102 as current year debt service payments were more than the
issuance of the new private placement lease purchase bonds totaling $3,348,000.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

This comprehensive annual financial report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to
those statements. The statements are organized so the reader can understand the District as a whole,
and then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

Reporting the District as a Whole

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities
One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or
worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities report information about the District as a whole and about its activities in a manner that helps
to answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting prescribed for governmental
entities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into consideration regardless of
when cash is received or paid. The financial statements of the District’s governmental activities begin
after the management’s discussion and analysis section.

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in that position providing the reader
a tool to assist in determining whether the District’s financial health is improving or deteriorating. The
reader will need to consider other non financial factors such as property tax base, current property tax
laws, student enrollment growth, and facility conditions in arriving at their conclusion regarding the
overall health of the District.
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Management’s Discussion & Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

 

Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements begin after the statement of activities and provide detailed information
about the most significant funds – not the District as a whole. Some funds are required to be
established by State statute, while many other funds are established by the District to help manage
money for particular purposes and compliance with various grant provisions. The District’s different
types of funds, governmental, proprietary and fiduciary, use different accounting approaches as further
described in the notes to the financial statements.

Governmental Funds
Most of the District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year end available for spending in future periods.
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which
measures cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short term view of the District’s general government operations and the
basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more
or less financial resources available to spend in the near future to finance the District’s programs. The
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the basic financial statements.

Proprietary Fund
The District has one proprietary fund which is an internal service fund established to accumulate monies
from other funds to pay claims and other expenses associated the District’s self insured workers’
compensation coverage. This fund is reported using the accrual basis of accounting, just as the
government wide statements, and focus on the determination of operating income, the change in net
position, financial position, and cash flows. For government wide financial statements, the assets and
liabilities are included within governmental activities and the net revenue or expense of the internal
service fund for the year is allocated among the participating functions within the governmental
activities.

Fiduciary Funds
The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its scholarship programs as well as the fiscal agent for the
various State athletic tournament games held within the District. All of the District’s fiduciary activities
are reported as either private purpose trust or custodial fund types. We exclude these activities from
the District’s other financial statements because the assets cannot be utilized by the District to finance
its’ operations.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government wide and fund financial statements. These notes to the basic financial statements start
after the fund statements of the fiduciary funds.

6



 
 

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Management’s Discussion & Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

 

The District as a Whole
The statement of net position provides the perspective of the District as a whole. A comparative analysis
of fiscal year 2021 to 2020 follows:

TABLE 1
NET POSITION JUNE 30

2021 2020
Assets:
Current and Other Assets $ 131,458,791 124,310,296
Capital Assets 72,499,143 77,566,562

Total Assets 203,957,934 201,876,858

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred Charge on Refundings 9,089,131 8,139,964
Pension and OPEB 23,502,341 24,823,229

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 32,591,472 32,963,193

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities 10,873,733 10,122,087
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 5,633,226 7,050,086
Due in More than One Year:
Net Pension Liability 112,306,230 104,054,879
Net OPEB Liability 8,860,461 10,374,837
Other Obligations 80,635,533 80,386,091
Total Liabilities 218,309,183 211,987,980

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Property Taxes 78,296,152 77,275,229
Pension and OPEB 14,311,996 15,487,807

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 92,608,148 92,763,036

Net Position (Deficit):
Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,374,024 6,320,991
Restricted 5,439,969 5,055,662
Unrestricted (85,181,918) (81,287,618)

Total Net Position (Deficit) $ (74,367,925) (69,910,965)

The net pension liability (NPL) is reported pursuant to GASB 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions – an Amendment of GASB Statement 27”, and the net OPEB asset/liability is reported pursuant
to GASB Statement 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions”. For reasons discussed below, many end users of this financial statement will gain a clearer
understanding of the District’s actual financial condition by adding deferred inflows related to pension
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Management’s Discussion & Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

 

and OPEB, the net pension liability and the net OPEB liability to the reported net position and
subtracting net OPEB asset and deferred outflows related to pension and OPEB.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board standards are national and apply to all government financial
reports prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Prior accounting for
pensions (GASB 27) and postemployment benefits (GASB 45) focused on a funding approach. This
approach limited pension and OPEB costs to contributions annually required by law, which may or may
not be sufficient to fully fund each plan’s net pension liability or OPEB liability. GASB 68 and GASB 75
take an earnings approach to pension and OPEB accounting; however, the nature of Ohio’s statewide
pension/OPEB plans and state law governing those systems requires additional explanation in order to
properly understand the information presented in these statements.

GASB 68 and GASB 75 required the net pension liability and the net OPEB asset/liability to equal the
District’s proportionate share of each plan’s collective:

1. Present value of estimated future pension/OPEB benefits attributable to active and inactive
employees’ past service

2 Minus plan assets available to pay these benefits

GASB notes that pension and OPEB obligations, whether funded or unfunded, are part of the
“employment exchange” – that is, the employee is trading his or her labor in exchange for wages,
benefits, and the promise of a future pension and other postemployment benefits. GASB noted that the
unfunded portion of this promise is a present obligation of the government, part of a bargained for
benefit to the employee, and should accordingly be reported by the government as a liability since they
received the benefit of the exchange. However, the District is not responsible for certain key factors
affecting the balance of these liabilities. In Ohio, the employee shares the obligation of funding pension
benefits with the employer. Both employer and employee contribution rates are capped by State
statute. A change in these caps requires action of both Houses of the General Assembly and approval of
the Governor. Benefit provisions are also determined by State statute. The Ohio Revised Code permits,
but does not require the retirement systems to provide healthcare to eligible benefit recipients. The
retirement systems may allocate a portion of the employer contributions to provide for these OPEB
benefits.

The employee enters the employment exchange with the knowledge that the employer’s promise is
limited not by contract but by law. The employer enters the exchange also knowing that there is a
specific, legal limit to its contribution to the retirement systems. In Ohio, there is no legal means to
enforce the unfunded liability of the pension/OPEB plan as against the public employer. State law
operates to mitigate/lessen the moral obligation of the public employer to the employee, because all
parties enter the employment exchange with notice as to the law. The pension system is responsible for
the administration of the plan.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

 

Most long term liabilities have set repayment schedules or, in the case of compensated absences (i.e.
sick and vacation leave), are satisfied through paid time off or termination payments. There is no
repayment schedule for the net pension liability or the net OPEB liability. As explained above, changes in
benefits, contribution rates, and return on investments affect the balance of these assets and liabilities,
but are outside the control of the local government. In the event the contributions, investment returns,
and other changes are insufficient to keep up with required payments, State statute does not
assign/identify the responsible party for the unfunded portion. Due to the unique nature of how the net
pension liability and the net OPEB liability are satisfied, these liabilities are separately identified within
the long term liability section of the statement of net position.

In accordance with GASB 68 and GASB 75, the District’s statements prepared on an accrual basis of
accounting include an annual pension expense and an annual OPEB expense for their proportionate
share of each plan’s change in net pension liability and net OPEB asset/liability, respectively, not
accounted for as deferred inflows/outflows.

As noted earlier, increases or decreases in net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. In the case of the District, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
exceeded assets and deferred outflows of resources by $74.4 million at the close of the most recent
fiscal year compared with the $69.9 million reported at the end of the prior year.

During fiscal year 2021, the total assets of the District increased by 1.0%, or $2.1 million. Capital assets
decreased by $5.1 million (6.5%) as current year depreciation expense recognized was significantly more
than the capital asset additions recorded for the year. At year end, capital assets represented 35.5% of
total assets. Current and other asset accounts increased by $7.1 million during the year or 5.8%, due to
$3.3 million increase in restricted cash with fiscal agent related to the lease purchase bonds issued, $2.5
million increase in pooled cash and cash equivalents resulting from increased property tax receipts, and
the $1.2 million increase in intergovernmental receivables recorded for the current year compared to
recorded for the prior year.

Total liabilities reported at June 30, 2021 increased by $6.3 million (3.0%) from the amounts at the
beginning of the year. The net pension and OPEB liabilities (described above) increased by a total of $6.7
million over the amounts reported one year prior based on the information provided by the retirement
plans. All other long term liabilities decreased by $1.2 million due to current year debt service
payments which was partially offset by the issuance of $3.3 million of addition bonds to financing
lighting improvement projects throughout the District. Current liabilities increased 7.4% during the fiscal
year due primarily to the increases in accrued wages and benefits, intergovernmental payable, and
matured compensated absences reported compared to those reported for the prior fiscal year. Accrued
wages and benefits increased due to the increased cost of personnel (wages and benefits).
Intergovernmental payable, primarily pension contributions increased due to the higher wages for the
current year. Matured compensated absences reported at the end of any fiscal year is dependent upon
the number of employees that retire and when those employees’ severance payments are made.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

 

The changes reported for total deferred inflows and outflows of resources directly relate to the District
recording the components of the net pension and OPEB assets and liabilities due to change in
proportionate share of the net pension liability and net OPEB asset/liability for fiscal year 2021
compared to the prior year as well as projected earnings and experience costs varying from actual
activity reported by the pension/OPEB plans.

Net position at June 30, 2021 was $4.5 million less than the amount reported for the beginning of the
year. Net investment in capital assets decreased as depreciation expense for the year was more than the
reduction in capital related debt obligations. Restricted net position increased 7.6% as State and federal
grant programs ended the fiscal year with higher net position balances than those reported in the prior
fiscal year. The unrestricted net position (deficit) decreased during the year by $3.9 million, or 4.8%.
However, if the components of recording the net pension and OPEB plans are removed from the
Statement of Net Position, the District’s ending unrestricted net position would be a positive $20.6
million instead of the reported $85.2 million deficit. We feel this is important to mention as the
management of the District has no control over the management of the State wide pension/OPEB plans
or the benefits offered; both of which control the net pension and OPEB components which significantly
effects the District’s financial statements.

A comparative analysis of change in net position for fiscal year 2021 and 2020 follows:

TABLE 2
CHANGE IN NET POSITION, JUNE 30

2021 2020
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 3,039,238 4,924,356
Operating Grants and Contributions 8,716,003 6,328,288

General Revenues:
Property Taxes 81,733,939 76,398,445
Grants and Entitlements 23,555,918 22,256,475
Investment Earnings 71,208 756,591
Miscellaneous 349,850 285,605

Total Revenues 117,466,156 110,949,760

(continued)
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TABLE 2
CHANGE IN NET POSITION, JUNE 30

(Continued)
2021 2020

Expenses:
Instruction 72,653,062 68,912,055
Support Services:
Pupils and Instructional Staff 10,580,234 10,294,909
Board of Education, Administration
Fiscal and Business 8,893,524 8,623,751

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 7,686,730 7,715,301
Pupil Transportation 6,187,719 6,604,450
Central 7,107,263 7,704,409

Operation of Non Instructional Services 4,040,278 5,359,279
Extracurricular Activities 2,201,787 2,519,350
Interest and Fiscal Charges 2,572,519 2,896,655

Total Expenses 121,923,116 120,630,159
Change in Net Position (4,456,960) (9,680,399)
Net Position (Deficit), Beginning of Year (69,910,965) (60,230,566)
Net Position (Deficit), End of Year $ (74,367,925) (69,910,965)

Governmental Activities

Net position of the District’s governmental activities decreased during fiscal year 2021 by $4.5 million;
unrestricted net position (deficit) decreased by $3.9 million during that same period. Total governmental
expenses of $121.9 million exceeded program revenues of $11.8 million, leaving the remaining $110.1
million to be covered by general revenues. Program revenues supported 9.6% of the total governmental
expenses. The primary sources of revenue for governmental activities are derived from property taxes
and unrestricted grants and entitlements which are reported as general revenues. These two revenue
sources represent 89.6% of total governmental revenue.

The property tax laws in Ohio create the need to periodically seek voter approval for additional
operating funds. In general, tax revenues generated from a levy do not increase as a result of inflation.
An operating levy is approved for a fixed millage rate, but the rate is reduced for inflation with the effect
of providing the District the same amount of tax dollars as originally approved. Therefore, school
districts, such as ours, that are dependent upon property taxes as a primary source of revenue must
periodically return to the ballot and ask voters for additional resources to maintain current programs.
Since the District must rely heavily on voter approval of operating tax issues, management of the
resources is of paramount concern to District administration and the voting public. The District utilizes a
five year cash financial forecast to estimate revenues and control expenditures to assure tax levy
revenues can maintain operations for a significant period of time.
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Operating grants and contributions revenues increased by $2.4 million for fiscal year 2021 compared
with the prior year as the District recognized an additional allocation of federal grant resources from the
State in the prior fiscal year associated with pandemic relief programs. Property tax revenue reported
for fiscal year 2021 increased by 7.0% over the prior year due to fiscal year 2021 being the first reporting
period capturing all the new taxes associated with the levy approved by voters in May 2019. State
foundation revenue (unrestricted grants and entitlements) increased by $1.3 million over the prior year
as a result of the State returning to normal funding levels after reducing prior year funding in an attempt
to deal with the economic uncertainties caused by the COVID 19 pandemic.

The expenses reported for fiscal year 2021 are $1.3 million more than those reported for the prior year
as increase in the number of employees, as well as wage and benefit expenses affected most functional
areas. Decreases in the operation of non instructional services function can be attributed to the reduced
need to operation certain non instructional programs due to temporary disruptions caused by the
pandemic during the current fiscal year.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. The table below reflects the cost of program services and the net cost of those
services after taking into account the program revenues for the governmental activities. General
revenues including tax revenue, investment earnings and unrestricted State entitlements must support
the net cost of program services. Comparisons to 2020 are as follows:

TABLE 3
TOTAL AND COST OF PROGRAM SERVICES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

2021 2020
Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
of Service of Service of Service of Service

Instruction $ 72,653,062 (67,205,980) 68,912,055 (63,347,304)
Support Services 40,455,470 (38,747,818) 40,942,820 (39,920,068)
Operation of Non Instructional Services 4,040,278 (463,900) 5,359,279 (1,991,913)
Extracurricular Activities 2,201,787 (1,177,658) 2,519,350 (1,221,575)
Interest and Fiscal Charges 2,572,519 (2,572,519) 2,896,655 (2,896,655)

Total Expenses $ 121,923,116 (110,167,875) 120,630,159 (109,377,515)
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It is apparent from the information presented in Table 3 above, that funding the operation of the District
remains heavily reliant on property tax revenues. During fiscal year 2021, property taxes accounted for
69.6% of total revenues for governmental activities. The reliance on general revenues to support
governmental activities is indicated by the net services column reflecting the need for approximately
$110.1 million of support to finance the functions. The large change in the net cost of service related to
the operation of non instructional services compared to the prior year was due to the reduction in food
service sales which directly related to schools closing due to the pandemic.  
 

 
 

Revenue Source 2021 Amount % of Total
Property Taxes 81,733,939$ 69.6%
Charges for Services and Sales 3,039,238 2.6%
Operating Grants and Contributions 8,716,003 7.4%
Grants and Entitlements not Restricted to Specific Programs 23,555,918 20.0%
Investment Earnings 71,208 0.1%
Miscellaneous 349,850 0.3%

117,466,156$ 100.0%
 

 
The District’s Funds
The District’s governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All
governmental funds had total revenues of $116.6 million and expenditures of $116.1 million. Overall
fund balance of governmental funds increased by $4.1 million from those at the beginning of the fiscal
year.

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the District. The general fund balance increased by
$2.3 million during the year compared with a $35,508 decrease reported in the prior year. General fund
revenues increased by $7.1 million over those of fiscal year 2020 as property tax revenue increased $6.5
million. Fiscal year 2021 was the first full year of collection on the emergency operating levy passed by
voters in May 2019. Since property taxes are levied and collected on a calendar year, the District
received approximately half of the estimated $11.4 million of additional taxes in fiscal year 2020.

Property Taxes,
69.6%Charges for

Services and Sales,
2.6%

Operating Grants
and Contributions,

7.4%

Grants and
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Specific Programs,
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Intergovernmental revenues of the general fund increased by $1.6 million compared with those of the
prior year as State funding was returned to normal levels. In the last quarter of the previous fiscal year,
certain budget cuts made by the State of Ohio aimed at offsetting the economic fallout created by the
COVID 19 pandemic. Expenditures of the fund increased by approximately $4.6 million, or just above
5%, due to additional employees as well as general increase in wages and benefits of existing
employees. Nearly $4.1 million of the total increases in expenses were reported in the direct student
instruction function areas. The ending unassigned fund balance of the general fund at June 30, 2021
($16.8 million) represents 17.4% of the total expenditures reported by the general fund for the year
then ended. The increase in unassigned fund balance within the general fund resulted from the
increased funding received via property taxes and state funding during the current fiscal year.

The District’s other major fund, the debt service fund, reported a $1.1 million decrease its fund balance
during the fiscal year. This fund accumulates resources, predominately from property taxes, to repay
general obligation debt of the District. Debt service payments during the year totaled $7.9 million, while
property tax related revenues amounted to $6.0 million. As the District’s 2006 bonds fully matured
during the previous calendar year, the tax levy associated was discontinued. Also, during the current
year, the District undertook an advance refunding of a portion of its 2015 refunding bonds to achieve a
savings in debt service payments of approximately $3.6 million over the next 15 years.

General Fund Budget Information
During fiscal year 2021, the District modified the general fund’s budget on a few occasions. Revenues,
excluding other financing sources, were originally budgeted at $98.8 million which was increased to
$99.4 million by year end. Expenditures, excluding other financing uses, were initially budgeted at
$101.4 million and decreased slightly through the year to an ending budget of $99.6 million. Actual
budgetary revenues were $155,570 more than the ending budgeted revenues while actual budgetary
expenditures ended $2.5 million less than the final budgeted expenditures.

The ending budgetary fund balance of the general fund ended fiscal year 2021 at $22.8 million, or nearly
$4.3 million more than the original budgeted balance of $18.5 million. The higher actual budgetary fund
balance resulted from higher revenues as well as management’s ongoing effort to limit operating costs.
The ending budgetary basis fund balance is carried forward to subsequent year(s) and is available to
fund appropriations adopted of those future periods.

The District utilizes the five year forecast as the original document from which to form the operating
budget. After updating of the forecast for changes in revenue and expenditure assumptions the
operating budget begins at the school building and department level. Each building and department in
the District receive an allocation based on several factors including estimated revenue, a historical
analysis, projected current need, including enrollment and projected current resources. The building and
department budgets are reviewed monthly to ensure management becomes aware of any significant
variations during the year.
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Capital Assets
At the end of the fiscal year 2021, the District had $72.5 million invested in land, land improvements,
buildings, building improvements, furniture, equipment and vehicles.

During the year, the District reported capital asset additions of $1.3 million; including a new wellness
center and two new school buses. Depreciation expense on all capital assets was $6.4 million for the
fiscal year.

Additional information regarding capital assets can be found in Note 8 of this report. Table 4 shows the
fiscal year 2021 balances compared to fiscal year 2020.

TABLE 4
CAPITAL ASSETS, JUNE 30

2021 2020

Land $ 6,996,584 6,996,584
Land Improvements 2,975,580 3,096,248
Buildings 58,497,111 63,331,642
Building Improvements 1,826,402 1,839,405
Furniture and Equipment 604,706 615,234
Vehicles 1,598,760 1,687,449

Total Net Capital Assets $ 72,499,143 77,566,562

Debt Administration
At June 30, 2021, the District had $79.7 million in outstanding general obligation bonds, including $10.2
million of unamortized bond premiums and nearly $700,000 of accreted interest on capital appreciation
bonds. During the fiscal year, the District paid $5.9 million in principal and accreted interest on bonds
and another $4.3 million of principal and accreted interest is due to mature within one year. The District
had two bond issuances during the year; the 2020 taxable general obligation bonds issued to advance
refund a portion of the 2015 refunding bonds, and $3.3 million of new private placement, lease
purchase obligation bonds series 2021 to finance various lighting projects throughout the District. The
2020 refunding bonds were issued to achieve a debt savings of $3.6 million over the next 15 years.

Detailed information regarding long term debt obligations is included in Note 11 to the basic financial
statements.

Contacting the District
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, creditors and investors with a general
overview of the District’s financial position and to show the District’s accountability for the funds it
receives. Should you have any questions about this report or any other financial matter, contact the
Treasurer’s Office at Beavercreek City School District, 3040 Kemp Road, Beavercreek, Ohio 45431.
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General Fund Debt Service Fund

Non Major
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 27,931,804$ 3,724,372$ 4,753,385$ 36,409,561$
Investments with Fiscal Agent 42,934 42,934
Inventory Held for Resale 12,694 12,694
Materials and Supplies Inventory 7,058 7,058
Accounts Receivable 247,214 247,214
Interfund Receivable 1,728,690 628 1,729,318
Intergovernmental Receivable 205,361 2,489,589 2,694,950
Prepaid Items 16,942 16,942
Taxes Receivable 74,383,976 5,268,470 2,574,334 82,226,780
Restricted:
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent 3,288,000 3,288,000

Total Assets 104,513,987$ 9,035,776$ 13,125,688$ 126,675,451$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 553,150$ $ 196,798$ 749,948$
Accrued Wages and Benefits 7,347,380 404,547 7,751,927
Interfund Payable 628 1,728,690 1,729,318
Intergovernmental Payable 1,460,712 121,511 1,582,223
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 515,659 26,545 542,204

Total Liabilities 9,877,529 2,478,091 12,355,620

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property Taxes not Levied to Finance
Current Year Operations 70,842,102 5,006,600 2,447,450 78,296,152

Unavailable Revenue 457,842 1,833,400 2,291,242

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 71,299,944 5,006,600 4,280,850 80,587,394

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Items 16,942 16,942

Restricted:
Capital Outlay 3,843,157 3,843,157
Debt Service 4,029,176 4,029,176
Student Activities 887,214 887,214
State and Federal Grant Programs 95,106 95,106
Other Purposes 9,539 9,539

Committed:
Capital Outlay 2,526,843 2,526,843

Assigned:
School Supported Activities 425,716 425,716
Employee Benefits 1,354,924 1,354,924
Future Purchase Commitments 1,519,888 1,519,888
Subsequent Year Appropriations 3,170,762 3,170,762

Unassigned (Deficit) 16,848,282 (995,112) 15,853,170

Total Fund Balances 23,336,514 4,029,176 6,366,747 33,732,437

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances 104,513,987$ 9,035,776$ 13,125,688$ 126,675,451$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021
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Governmental
Activities

Internal Service
Fund

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Interfund Services Provided 209,726$
Cash Paid for Purchased Services (74,848)
Cash Paid for Settlement of Claims (75,294)
Cash Paid for Other Purposes (802)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 58,782

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 58,782

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year, Restated 283,423

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 342,205$

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Income 31,778$
Adjustments:
Increase in Claims Payable 27,004

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 58,782$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Private
Purpose Trust Custodial

Fund Fund

ADDITIONS:
Gifts and Donations 54,212$ $
Extracurricular Amounts Collected for Other Organizations 1,721

Total Additions 54,212 1,721

DEDUCTIONS:
Payments in Accordance with Trust Agreements 50,800
Extracurricular Distributions to Other Organizations 1,721

Total Deductions 50,800 1,721

Change in Net Position 3,412

Net Position at Beginning of Year 52,288

Net Position at End of Year 55,700$ $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

1. Description of the District and Reporting Entity

The Beavercreek City School District (the “District”) is a body politic and corporate established
for the purpose of exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the constitution and
laws of the State of Ohio. The District is a city district as defined by Section 3311.02 of the Ohio
Revised Code. The District operates under a locally elected five member board and is
responsible for the provision of public education to residents of the District. The Board controls
the District’s instructional/support facilities staffed by 389 non certificated staff, 496 certificated
staff members and 42 administrative staff to provide services to 7,658 total students.

Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other
organizations that are included to ensure that the basic financial statements of the District are
not misleading.

The primary government consists of all funds and departments, which provide various services
including instruction, student guidance, extracurricular activities, food service, pre school,
educational media and care and upkeep of grounds and buildings. The operation of each of
these activities is directly controlled by the Board of Education.

Current State legislation provides funding to parochial schools, as well as the community and
Montessori schools within the District boundaries. These monies are received and disbursed on
behalf of the non public school by the treasurer of the District, as directed by the non public
school. The State monies received/disbursed by the District are reflected as a governmental
activity for financial reporting purposes.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially
accountable. The District is financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a
voting majority of the organization’s governing body and (1) the District is able to significantly
influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the District
is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization’s resources; (3) the District is
legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or
provide financial support to, the organization; or (4) the District is obligated for the debt of the
organization. Component units may also include organizations for which the District approves
the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. The District does not have any
component units.

The District is associated with five organizations, four of which are defined as jointly governed
and the other an insurance purchasing pool. These organizations include the Southwestern Ohio
Educational Purchasing Council (SOEPC), Miami Valley Educational Computer Association
(MVECA), the Greene County Career Center, the Southwestern Ohio Instructional Technology
Association (SOITA), and the Butler Health Plan (BHP). These organizations are presented in
Notes 17 and 18 to the basic financial statements, respectively.
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

3. Accountability (continued)

As a result, the beginning fund balance for the general and internal service funds were modified
from the amounts previously reported as shown below. Net position of governmental activities
was not modified since the internal service funds ending net position was already included
within governmental activities in prior years.

Governmental
General Activities Internal
Fund Service Funds

Fund Balance June 30, 2020 as previously reported 18,906,546$ 2,393,656$

Adjustments:
Reclassification of former internal service fund 2,149,787 (2,149,787)

Fund Balance June 30, 2020 as restated 21,056,333$ 243,869$

b. Deficit Fund Balances

At June 30, 2021, the District reported deficit fund balances in various non major, special
revenue funds which resulted from adjustments for accrued liabilities. The general fund is liable
for any deficit in these funds and will provide transfers when cash is required, not when accruals
occur. Individual fund deficits reported at June 30, 2021 include the following:

Non Major Funds Deficit

Food Service 251,842$
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief 77,706
Coronavirus Relief 1
IDEA, Part B Grant 74,139
Title I Grant 64,372
IDEA Preschool Grant 6,034
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grant 2,399
Miscellaneous Federal Grants 518,619

4. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

While the District is reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund
balance on the basis of GAAP, the budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon accounting
for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget (Non GAAP Basis)
and Actual presented for the general fund is presented on the budgetary basis to provide a
meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the
budget basis and GAAP basis are that:
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

4. Budgetary Basis of Accounting (continued)

Revenues and other financing sources are recorded when received in cash (budget
basis) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP basis);

Expenditures and other financing uses are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as
opposed to when the liability is incurred (GAAP basis);

In order to determine compliance with Ohio law, and reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation, total outstanding encumbrances (budget basis) are recorded
as the equivalent of an expenditure, as opposed to an assignment of fund balance for
that portion of outstanding encumbrances not already recognized as an account payable
(GAAP basis); and,

Some funds are included in the general fund (GAAP basis), but have separate legally
adopted budgets (budget basis).

The adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations for the year on the budget basis
to the GAAP basis for the general fund are as follows:

Net Change in Fund Balance

General Fund

Budget Basis $ 1,696,823

Adjustments:
Revenue Accruals (940,831)
Expenditure Accruals (996,617)
Encumbrances 2,073,131
Other Financing Sources(Uses) 1,158,723
Perspective Budgeting Difference ** (711,048)

GAAP Basis $ 2,280,181

** As part of GASB Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting”, certain funds that are legally
budgeted in separate special revenue funds are considered part of the general fund on a GAAP
basis. This includes the uniform school supply fund, public school support fund, and summer
school fund. These funds have legally adopted budgets and have a schedule of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balance – budget (Non GAAP basis) and actual presented.
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

5. Deposits and Investments (continued)

Certain banker’s acceptance and commercial paper notes for a period not to exceed one
hundred eighty days from purchase date in an amount not to exceed 25% of the interim
monies available for investment at any one time, and under limited circumstances,
corporate debt interests rated in either of the two highest classifications by at least two
nationally recognized rating agencies.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations reverse repurchase agreements and
derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of table notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of
leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years
from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation of or debt of the District, and
must be purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity. Investments may only
be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for investments may be made only
upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the Treasurer or, if the securities
are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the
custodian.

Deposits
At June 30, 2021, the carrying amount of all District deposits was $1,060,624 including cash on
hand. Based on the criteria described in GASB Statement 40, “Deposits and Investment Risk
Disclosures”, $1,148,944 of the District’s bank balance of $1,484,445 was exposed to custodial
risk as discussed below, while $335,501 was covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure, the District’s deposits may not
be returned. The District’s policy for deposits is that any balance not covered by depository
insurance will be collateralized by the financial institution with pledged securities. Ohio law
requires that deposits either be insured or be protected by:

Eligible securities pledged to the District and deposited with a qualified trustee by the
financial institution as security for repayment whose fair value at all times shall be at
least 105 percent of the deposits being secured; or

Participation in the Ohio Pooled Collateral System (OPCS), a collateral pool of eligible
securities deposited with a qualified trustee and pledged to the Treasurer of State to
secure the repayment of all public monies deposited in the financial institution. OPCS
requires the total fair value of the securities to be 102 percent of the deposits being
secured or a rate set by the Treasurer of State.
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

5. Deposits and Investments (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk
The District places a limit on the percentage of the portfolio that may be held in the form of
commercial paper, other than this stipulation, the District places no limit on the amount that
may be invested in any one issuer. The following table includes the percentage of each
investment type held by the District at June 30, 2021:

Measurement % of
Investment Type Value Portfolio

U.S. Treasuries 2,332,450$ 6.53%
U.S. Agencies 2,051,335 5.74%
Negotiable CDs 1,744,429 4.88%
Municipal Securities 829,839 2.32%
Mutual Fund 1,022,752 2.86%
Commercial Paper 4,798,584 13.42%
STAROhio 22,967,453 64.25%

Total 35,746,842$

Fair Value Measurement
The District’s investments measured and reported at fair value are classified according to the
following hierarchy:

Level 1 – Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets.

Level 2 – Investments reflect prices that are based on a similar observable asset either
directly or indirectly, which may include inputs in markets that are not
considered to be active.

Level 3 – Investments reflect prices based upon unobservable sources.

The categorization of investments within the hierarchy is based upon the transparency of the
instrument and should not be perceived as the particular investment’s risk. Investments
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using matrix pricing sources and
valuation techniques as provided by the investment managers.

The District had the reoccurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021 as shown in the
following table:
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

6. Property Taxes (continued)

The assessed values upon which fiscal year 2021 taxes receipts were based on are as follows:

2021 First Half 2020 Second Half
Collections Collections

Real Estate
Residential /Agricultural 1,559,366,980$ 1,369,114,770$
Commerical / Industrial 484,500,440 471,756,730

Public Utility Property 47,383,960 46,490,400

Total 2,091,251,380$ 1,887,361,900$

Accrued property taxes receivable represents delinquent taxes outstanding and real property,
personal property and public utility taxes which became measurable as of June 30, 2021, and for
which there is an enforceable legal claim. Although total property tax collections for the next
fiscal year are measurable, only the amount available as an advance at June 30 is intended to
finance current fiscal year operations. The receivable is therefore offset by a credit to deferred
inflow of resources for that portion not intended to finance current year operations. On the
accrual basis, total delinquent property tax amounts existing at year end have been recorded as
revenue.

7. Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2021 consisted of taxes, accounts (tuition and student fees), and
intergovernmental grants and entitlements. All receivables are considered collectible in full due
to the ability to foreclose for the nonpayment of taxes, the stable condition of State programs
and the current year guarantee of federal funds. A summary of the District’s intergovernmental
receivables follows:

Governmental Activities: Amount
General Fund
County ESC FY2021 True up 205,361$

Non Major Governmental Funds
Food Service Reimbursements 322,716
Other State Grants 2,045
ESSER Funding 507,023
Coronavirus Relief 89,281
IDEA, Part B Federal Grant 671,850
Title III Federal Grant 27,435
Title I Federal Grant 111,469
IDEA Preschool Federal Grant 59,350
Supporting Effective Instruction 156,456
Miscellaneous Federal Grants 541,964

Total 2,694,950$
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

10. Interfund Transactions

During fiscal year 2021, the general fund provided operating transfers of $81,038 to the food
service fund (non major governmental fund) to provide support for certain activities and
programs.

Interfund balances on the fund statements at June 30, 2021 resulted from the general fund
advancing monies to non major governmental funds to cover temporary deficits and consisted
of the following receivables and payables:

Fund Receivable Payable

General Fund 1,728,690$ 628$

Other Governmental Funds:
Non Major Special Revenue Funds:
Food Service Fund 417,503
District Managed Student Activities Fund 628
Elementary & Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund 510,023
Coronavirus Relief Fund 89,281
IDEA, Part B Grant Fund 147,246
Title III Limited English Proficiency Grant Fund 175
Title I Grant Fund 13,103
IDEA Preschool Grant Fund 22,157
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants Fund 13,543
Miscellaneous Federal Grants Fund 515,659

1,729,318$ 1,729,318$

This Space Intentionally Left Blank
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

11. Long Term Obligations

The activity of the District’s long term obligations during fiscal year 2021 was as follows:

Amount
Balance Balance Due Within
7/1/2020 Increase Decrease 6/30/2021 One Year

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds:
2020 Taxable General Obligation
Refunding Bonds:
Current Interest 1.08% 1.76% $ 19,005,000$ $ 19,005,000$ $
Capital Appreciation Bonds 1,147,579 1,147,579 510,388
Accreted Interest 696,394 696,394 514,612

2018 Athletic Facility Construction
and Improvement Taxable Bond:
Current Interest 4.75% 335,000 (110,000) 225,000 110,000

2015 School Improvement
Refunding Bonds:
Current Interest 2.5% 5% 65,650,000 (20,595,000) 45,055,000 3,150,000
Capital Appreciation Bonds 17 (17)
Accreted Interest 1,709,172 15,811 (1,724,983)

2006 School Improvement
Bond Refunding, 3.5% 5% 3,660,000 (3,660,000)

Unamortized Premium 9,024,736 4,598,957 (3,388,843) 10,234,850
Total General Obligation Bonds 80,378,925 25,463,741 (29,478,843) 76,363,823 4,285,000

Private Placement Bonds:
Lease Purchase Obligation
Bond, Series 2021 1.69% 3,348,000 3,348,000 351,000

Net Pension Liability:
STRS 78,515,632 6,436,379 84,952,011
SERS 25,539,247 1,814,972 27,354,219

Total Net Pension Liability 104,054,879 8,251,351 112,306,230

Net OPEB Liability:
SERS 10,374,837 (1,514,376) 8,860,461

Other Long Term Obligations:
Capital Leases 715,782 (228,961) 486,821 238,462
Compensated Absences 6,341,470 634,770 (906,125) 6,070,115 758,764

Total Governmental Activities 201,865,893$ 37,697,862$ (32,128,305)$ 207,435,450$ 5,633,226$

a. General Obligations Bonds

On December 13, 2006, the District issued general obligation bonds (Series 2006 Refunding
Bonds) to refund the callable portion of the Series 1995 general obligation bonds. The refunding
issue is comprised of current interest bonds, par value of $22,435,000. The interest rates on the
refunding ranges from 3.5% to 5% and the bonds matured on December 31, 2020. Interest and
principal payments are due each June 1 and December 1.
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

11. Long Term Obligations (continued)

On March 10, 2015, the District issued general obligation bonds (Series 2015 Refunding Bonds)
to refund the callable portion ($65.9 million) of the Series 2009 general obligation bonds. The
refunding issue totaled $65,929,980; consisting of $58,200,000 current interest bonds (rates
2.5% 5%) maturing in 2034, $7,450,000 current interest term bond (3.25%) maturing in 2036,
and $279,980 capital appreciation bonds which mature in fiscal years 2016 through 2021.

The capital appreciation bonds have a total maturity value of $4,115,000 ($2,390,000 which
matured during fiscal years 2016 through 2020 and $1,725,000 maturing in fiscal year 2021) and
were issued at $3,882,384. These bonds are not subject to redemption prior to scheduled
maturity.

On September 2, 2020, the District issued taxable general obligation bonds (Series 2020
Refunding Bonds) to advance refund a portion ($20.2 million) of the Series 2015 general
obligation refunding bonds. The refunding issue totaled $20,152,579; consisting of $19,005,000
current interest serial bonds (rates 1.08% 1.76%) maturing in 2031 and $1,147,579 capital
appreciation bonds which mature in fiscal years 2022 through 2027.

The capital appreciation bonds have a total maturity value of $5,985,000 and are not subject to
redemption prior to scheduled maturity. Accretion on the capital appreciation bonds
outstanding at the end of the current fiscal year amounted to $696,394.

The 2020 refunding was undertaken to reduce the District annual debt service payments by
$3,551,164 over the next 15 years and achieve an economic gain of $2,641,115.

The following is a summary of the District’s future annual debt service requirements to maturity
for general obligation bonds payable:

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Principal Accretion Total

2022 3,150,000$ 1,890,306$ 510,388$ 514,612$ 6,065,306$
2023 3,235,000 1,762,182 294,665 740,335 6,032,182
2024 3,400,000 1,596,306 166,035 853,965 6,016,306
2025 4,060,000 1,409,807 84,694 825,306 6,379,807
2026 4,260,000 1,255,057 72,632 1,292,368 6,880,057

2027 2031 32,320,000 3,895,950 19,165 610,835 36,845,950
2032 2036 9,850,000 1,429,886 11,279,886

2037 3,785,000 61,506 3,846,506

Total 64,060,000$ 13,301,000$ 1,147,579$ 4,837,421$ 83,346,000$

Capital Appreciation BondsSerial and Term Bonds
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

18. Insurance Purchasing Pool

The District participates in the Butler Health Plan (BHP), an insurance purchasing pool, formed to
provide affordable and desirable dental, life, medical, and other disability group insurance for
member’s employees, eligible dependents and designated beneficiaries. The Board of Directors
consists of one representative from each of the participating members and is elected by the
vote of a majority of the member school districts. Financial information can be obtained from
BHP at 400 North Erie Boulevard, Suite B, Hamilton, OH 45011.

19. COVID 19 Pandemic

The United States and the State of Ohio declared a state of emergency in March 2020 due to the
COVID 19 pandemic. Ohio’s state of emergency ended in June of 2021 while the national state
of emergency continues. During fiscal year 2021, the District received Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Security (CARES) Act funding. Additional funding has been made available through
the Consolidated Appropriations Act 2021, passed by Congress on December 1, 2020 and/or the
American Rescue Plan Act, passed by Congress on March 11, 2021.

During fiscal year 2021, the District recognized revenue amounting to $466,785 in Elementary
and Secondary School Emergency Relief Program funding and $359,317 in Coronavirus Relief
Fund Program funding.

20. Subsequent Event

For fiscal year 2022, School District foundation funding received from the State of Ohio will be
funded using a direct funding model. Under this new model, community school, STEM school,
scholarship, and open enrollment funding will be directly funded by the State of Ohio to the
respective educating schools. For fiscal year 2021 and prior, the amounts related to students
who were residents of the School District were funded to the School District who, in turn, made
the payment to the educating school. Currently the amount of reduced revenues and
expenditures for fiscal year 2022 cannot be accurately determined. This new funding system
calculates a unique base cost and unique “per pupil local capacity amount” for each School
District. The School District’s core foundation funding is then calculated. Any change in funding
will be subject to a phase in percentage of 16.67% for fiscal year 2022 and 33.33% for fiscal year
2023.
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Special Revenue Funds
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified
purposes.

Food Service Fund
To account for the financial transactions related to the food service operation of the District.

Lida Ferguson Land Fund
To account for donations received and expenditures made for the upkeep of the Lida
Ferguson Land Lab.

Uniform School Supply Fund
To account for the purchase and sale of instructional supplies as adopted by the Board of
Education for us in all buildings throughout the District. This fund is included with the
General Fund for GAAP reporting as it does not have restricted or committed revenue
source, therefore only Budget (Non GAAP Basis) information is presented within this
section.

Public School Support Fund
To account for specific local revenue sources (other than taxes) generated by individual
school buildings (i.e., sale of pictures, profits from vending machines, etc.). Expenditures
include field trips, materials, equipment and other items to supplement co curricular and
extra curricular programs. This fund is included with the General Fund for GAAP reporting as
it does not have restricted or committed revenue source, therefore only Budget (Non GAAP
Basis) information is presented within this section.

Other Grant Fund
To account for funding provided from local and state sources which are provided to assist
the District with various educational programs.

Summer School Fund
To account for tuition/fees received for the operation of summer school. This fund is
included with the General Fund for GAAP reporting as it does not have restricted or
committed revenue source, therefore only Budget (Non GAAP Basis) information is
presented within this section.

Student Managed Activities Fund
To account for resources associated with various student activities, which are managed by
Students with District personnel oversight and guidance.

District Managed Student Activities Fund
To account for local funds generated to assist student activities, which are managed by
District personnel.
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Special Revenue Funds (continued)

Auxiliary Services Fund
To account for state funds which provide services and materials to students attending non
public schools within the boundaries of the District as provided by state law.

Data Communication Fund
To account for state funds appropriated for the Ohio Educational Computer Network
Connections.

Student Wellness and Success Grant Fund
To account for state funds awarded to districts to help support student academic
achievement through mental health counseling, wraparound services, mentoring and after
school programs. 

Other State Grants Fund
To account for state funds provided for miscellaneous state programs.

Elementary & Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) – CARES Act Fund
To account for the District’s allocation of federal CARES Act funding based on percentage of
Title I funds each district receives to be used for expenses directly related to the pandemic,
as well as other activities that are necessary to maintain the operation of continuity of
services.

Coronavirus Relief Fund
To account for federal funds allocated to the District to address the unexpected costs
incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the COVID 19 pandemic.

IDEA, Part B Grant Fund
To account for federal funds received for the purpose of assisting in the identification of
handicapped children, development of procedural safeguards, implementation of least
restrictive alternate service patterns, and provision of full educational opportunities to
handicapped children.

Title III Limited English Proficiency Grant Fund
To account for federal funds used to meet the educational needs of children of limited
English proficiency.

Title I Grant Fund
To account for federal funds used to meet the special needs of educationally deprived
children.
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Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Special Revenue Funds (continued)

IDEA Preschool Grant Fund
To account for revenues and expenditures made in conjunction with early childhood
activities.

Supporting Effective Instruction State Grant Fund
To account for monies received under a federal grant to provide training and professional
development for professional staff members.

Miscellaneous Federal Grants Fund
To account for federal funds provided for miscellaneous federal programs.

Debt Service Fund
The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment
of general obligation bond principal and interest and certain other long term obligations from
governmental resources when the District is obligated in some manner for the payment.

Since there is only one Debt Service Fund and it is considered a major fund included in the Basic
Financial Statements, only Budget (Non GAAP Basis) information is presented here.

Capital Projects Fund
The Capital Projects funds are used to account for the financing and acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, such as new school buildings and additions to existing buildings, or for
major renovation projects.

Permanent Improvement Fund
The account for all transactions related to acquiring, constructing, or improving such
permanent improvements as are authorized by Chapter 5705 of the Ohio Revised Code.
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Food Service
Fund

Lida Ferguson
Land Fund

Other Grant
Fund

Student
Managed

Activities Fund

ASSETS:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 15,637$ $ 10,079$ 198,537$
Inventory Held for Resale 12,694
Materials and Supplies Inventory 7,058
Interfund Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable 322,716
Taxes Receivable
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent

Total Assets 358,105$ $ 10,079$ 198,537$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 6,865$ $ 540$ 2,690$
Accrued Wages and Benefits 65,013
Interfund Payable 417,503
Intergovernmental Payable 62,202
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 14,775

Total Liabilities 566,358 540 2,690

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property Taxes not Levied to Finance
Current Year Operations

Unavailable Revenue 43,589

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 43,589

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted:
Capital Outlay
Student Activities 195,847
State and Federal Grant Programs
Other Purposes 9,539

Committed:
Capital Outlay

Unassigned (Deficit) (251,842)

Total Fund Balances (251,842) 9,539 195,847

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances 358,105$ $ 10,079$ 198,537$

(Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021
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District Managed
Student

Activities Fund
Auxiliary

Services Fund

Data
Communication

Fund

Student
Wellness and
Success Grant

ASSETS:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 697,241$ 204,004$ $ $
Inventory Held for Resale
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Interfund Receivable 628
Intergovernmental Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent

Total Assets 697,869$ 204,004$ $ $

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 6,502$ 7,293$ $ $
Accrued Wages and Benefits 97,699
Interfund Payable
Intergovernmental Payable 17,599
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 10,432

Total Liabilities 6,502 133,023

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property Taxes not Levied to Finance
Current Year Operations

Unavailable Revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted:
Capital Outlay
Student Activities 691,367
State and Federal Grant Programs 70,981
Other Purposes

Committed:
Capital Outlay

Unassigned (Deficit)

Total Fund Balances 691,367 70,981

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances 697,869$ 204,004$ $ $

(Continued)

(Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021
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Other State
Grants Fund

ESSER CARES
Act Fund

Coronavirus
Relief Fund

IDEA , Part B
Grant Fund

ASSETS:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 31,181$ 457,729$ 72,460$ 55,658$
Inventory Held for Resale
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Interfund Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable 2,045 507,023 89,281 671,850
Taxes Receivable
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent

Total Assets 33,226$ 964,752$ 161,741$ 727,508$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $ 126,217$ $ 11,481$
Accrued Wages and Benefits 6,857 162,306
Interfund Payable 510,023 89,281 147,246
Intergovernmental Payable 708 28,054
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 512

Total Liabilities 7,565 636,240 89,281 349,599

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property Taxes not Levied to Finance
Current Year Operations

Unavailable Revenue 2,045 406,218 72,461 452,048

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,045 406,218 72,461 452,048

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted:
Capital Outlay
Student Activities
State and Federal Grant Programs 23,616
Other Purposes

Committed:
Capital Outlay

Unassigned (Deficit) (77,706) (1) (74,139)

Total Fund Balances 23,616 (77,706) (1) (74,139)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances 33,226$ 964,752$ 161,741$ 727,508$

(Continued)

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021
(Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Combining Balance Sheet
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Title III Limited
English

Proficiency
Grant Fund

Title I Grant
Fund

IDEA Preschool
Grant Fund

ASSETS:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ 14,615$
Inventory Held for Resale
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Interfund Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable 27,435 111,469 59,350
Taxes Receivable
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent

Total Assets 27,435$ 111,469$ 73,965$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $ $ 5,733$
Accrued Wages and Benefits 6 57,077 3,846
Interfund Payable 175 13,103 22,157
Intergovernmental Payable 7,048 538
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 263

Total Liabilities 181 77,228 32,537

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property Taxes not Levied to Finance
Current Year Operations

Unavailable Revenue 26,745 98,613 47,462

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 26,745 98,613 47,462

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted:
Capital Outlay
Student Activities
State and Federal Grant Programs 509
Other Purposes

Committed:
Capital Outlay

Unassigned (Deficit) (64,372) (6,034)

Total Fund Balances 509 (64,372) (6,034)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances 27,435$ 111,469$ 73,965$

(Continued)

(Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021
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Supporting
Effective

Instruction State
Grant Fund

Miscellaneous
Federal Grants

Fund

Total Nonmajor
Special Revenue

Funds

ASSETS:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,267$ 14,123$ 1,783,531$
Inventory Held for Resale 12,694
Materials and Supplies Inventory 7,058
Interfund Receivable 628
Intergovernmental Receivable 156,456 541,964 2,489,589
Taxes Receivable
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent

Total Assets 168,723$ 556,087$ 4,293,500$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 8,677$ 6,062$ 182,060$
Accrued Wages and Benefits 11,743 404,547
Interfund Payable 13,543 515,659 1,728,690
Intergovernmental Payable 5,362 121,511
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 563 26,545

Total Liabilities 22,220 539,389 2,463,353

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property Taxes not Levied to Finance
Current Year Operations

Unavailable Revenue 148,902 535,317 1,833,400

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 148,902 535,317 1,833,400

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted:
Capital Outlay
Student Activities 887,214
State and Federal Grant Programs 95,106
Other Purposes 9,539

Committed:
Capital Outlay

Unassigned (Deficit) (2,399) (518,619) (995,112)

Total Fund Balances (2,399) (518,619) (3,253)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances 168,723$ 556,087$ 4,293,500$

(Continued)

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021
(Continued)

Special Revenue Funds
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Permanent
Improvement

Fund

Total Nonmajor
Capital Project

Funds

Total Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,969,854$ 2,969,854$ 4,753,385$
Inventory Held for Resale 12,694
Materials and Supplies Inventory 7,058
Interfund Receivable 628
Intergovernmental Receivable 2,489,589
Taxes Receivable 2,574,334 2,574,334 2,574,334
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent 3,288,000 3,288,000 3,288,000

Total Assets 8,832,188$ 8,832,188$ 13,125,688$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 14,738$ 14,738$ 196,798$
Accrued Wages and Benefits 404,547
Interfund Payable 1,728,690
Intergovernmental Payable 121,511
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 26,545

Total Liabilities 14,738 14,738 2,478,091

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property Taxes not Levied to Finance
Current Year Operations 2,447,450 2,447,450 2,447,450

Unavailable Revenue 1,833,400

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,447,450 2,447,450 4,280,850

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted:
Capital Outlay 3,843,157 3,843,157 3,843,157
Student Activities 887,214
State and Federal Grant Programs 95,106
Other Purposes 9,539

Committed:
Capital Outlay 2,526,843 2,526,843 2,526,843

Unassigned (Deficit) (995,112)

Total Fund Balances 6,370,000 6,370,000 6,366,747

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances 8,832,188$ 8,832,188$ 13,125,688$

(Concluded)

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021
(Continued)

Capital Project Funds
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Food Service
Fund

Lida Ferguson
Land Fund

Other Grant
Fund

Student
Managed

Activities Fund

REVENUES:
Property and Other Local Taxes $ $ $ $
Intergovernmental 2,014,847 300
Interest
Extracurricular Activities 28,165
Gifts and Donations 8,875 1,222 17,814
Customer Sales and Services 322,354
Miscellaneous 19,864

Total Revenues 2,365,940 1,222 300 45,979

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular 540
Special
Student Intervention Services

Support Services:
Pupils
Instructional Staff
Administration
Fiscal
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 2,491
Pupil Transportation
Central

Operation of Non Instructional Services 2,608,924 5,000
Extracurricular Activities 63,346

Capital Outlay 11,400
Debt Service:
Issuance Costs

Total Expenditures 2,608,924 2,491 540 79,746

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (242,984) (1,269) (240) (33,767)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Other Bonds Issued
Transfers In 81,038

Total Other Financing Sources 81,038

Net Change in Fund Balances (161,946) (1,269) (240) (33,767)

Fund Balance (Deficit) at Beginning of Year (89,896) 1,269 9,779 229,614

Fund Balance (Deficit) at End of Year (251,842)$ $ 9,539$ 195,847$

(Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Special Revenue Funds

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
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District Managed
Student

Activities Fund
Auxiliary

Services Fund

Data
Communication

Fund

Student
Wellness and
Success Grant

REVENUES:
Property and Other Local Taxes $ $ $ $
Intergovernmental 1,032,196 18,000 393,360
Interest 178
Extracurricular Activities 432,062
Gifts and Donations 52,314
Customer Sales and Services
Miscellaneous 15,024

Total Revenues 499,400 1,032,374 18,000 393,360

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Special 174,677
Student Intervention Services

Support Services:
Pupils 218,683
Instructional Staff
Administration
Fiscal
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Pupil Transportation
Central 18,000

Operation of Non Instructional Services 1,118,451
Extracurricular Activities 410,520

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Issuance Costs

Total Expenditures 410,520 1,118,451 18,000 393,360

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 88,880 (86,077)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Other Bonds Issued
Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balances 88,880 (86,077)

Fund Balance (Deficit) at Beginning of Year 602,487 157,058

Fund Balance (Deficit) at End of Year 691,367$ 70,981$ $ $

(Continued)

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Special Revenue Funds

(Continued)
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Other State
Grants Fund

ESSER CARES
Act Fund

Coronavirus
Relief Fund

IDEA , Part B
Grant Fund

REVENUES:
Property and Other Local Taxes $ $ $ $
Intergovernmental 87,597 466,785 359,317 1,728,853
Interest
Extracurricular Activities
Gifts and Donations
Customer Sales and Services
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues 87,597 466,785 359,317 1,728,853

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular 478,488
Special (2,772) 22,562 1,196,855
Student Intervention Services 77

Support Services:
Pupils 33,425 421,071
Instructional Staff 11,000 18,546 36,500
Administration
Fiscal
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 3,149 277,994
Pupil Transportation 18,554
Central

Operation of Non Instructional Services 1,486 103,999
Extracurricular Activities

Capital Outlay 20,260 81,324
Debt Service:
Issuance Costs

Total Expenditures 60,207 544,491 359,318 1,758,502

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 27,390 (77,706) (1) (29,649)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Other Bonds Issued
Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balances 27,390 (77,706) (1) (29,649)

Fund Balance (Deficit) at Beginning of Year (3,774) (44,490)

Fund Balance (Deficit) at End of Year 23,616$ (77,706)$ (1)$ (74,139)$

(Continued)

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(Continued)
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Title III Limited
English

Proficiency
Grant Fund

Title I Grant
Fund

IDEA Preschool
Grant Fund

REVENUES:
Property and Other Local Taxes $ $ $
Intergovernmental 34,068 351,687 40,354
Interest
Extracurricular Activities
Gifts and Donations
Customer Sales and Services
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues 34,068 351,687 40,354

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular 1,761
Special 34,065 45,759
Student Intervention Services 335,256

Support Services:
Pupils
Instructional Staff 2,214
Administration
Fiscal
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Pupil Transportation
Central

Operation of Non Instructional Services
Extracurricular Activities

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Issuance Costs

Total Expenditures 34,065 339,231 45,759

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 3 12,456 (5,405)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Other Bonds Issued
Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balances 3 12,456 (5,405)

Fund Balance (Deficit) at Beginning of Year 506 (76,828) (629)

Fund Balance (Deficit) at End of Year 509$ (64,372)$ (6,034)$

(Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
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Supporting
Effective

Instruction State
Grant Fund

Miscellaneous
Federal Grants

Fund

Total Nonmajor
Special Revenue

Funds

REVENUES:
Property and Other Local Taxes $ $ $
Intergovernmental 61,976 21,115 6,610,455
Interest 178
Extracurricular Activities 460,227
Gifts and Donations 80,225
Customer Sales and Services 322,354
Miscellaneous 34,888

Total Revenues 61,976 21,115 7,508,327

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular 279,004 759,793
Special 1,471,146
Student Intervention Services 335,333

Support Services:
Pupils 8,964 682,143
Instructional Staff 64,220 585 133,065
Administration
Fiscal
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 8,270 291,904
Pupil Transportation 18,554
Central 18,000

Operation of Non Instructional Services 321 4,759 3,842,940
Extracurricular Activities 473,866

Capital Outlay 112,984
Debt Service:
Issuance Costs

Total Expenditures 64,541 301,582 8,139,728

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (2,565) (280,467) (631,401)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Other Bonds Issued
Transfers In 81,038

Total Other Financing Sources 81,038

Net Change in Fund Balances (2,565) (280,467) (550,363)

Fund Balance (Deficit) at Beginning of Year 166 (238,152) 547,110

Fund Balance (Deficit) at End of Year (2,399)$ (518,619)$ (3,253)$

(Continued)

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(Continued)

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Special Revenue Funds
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Permanent
Improvement

Fund

Total Nonmajor
Capital Project

Funds

Total Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

REVENUES:
Property and Other Local Taxes 2,534,074$ 2,534,074$ 2,534,074$
Intergovernmental 308,104 308,104 6,918,559
Interest 178
Extracurricular Activities 460,227
Gifts and Donations 80,225
Customer Sales and Services 322,354
Miscellaneous 34,888

Total Revenues 2,842,178 2,842,178 10,350,505

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular 1,511,177 1,511,177 2,270,970
Special 25,491 25,491 1,496,637
Student Intervention Services 335,333

Support Services:
Pupils 1,115 1,115 683,258
Instructional Staff 269,689 269,689 402,754
Administration 14,555 14,555 14,555
Fiscal 25,925 25,925 25,925
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 56,298 56,298 348,202
Pupil Transportation 279,740 279,740 298,294
Central 18,000

Operation of Non Instructional Services 54,853 54,853 3,897,793
Extracurricular Activities 473,866

Capital Outlay 460,465 460,465 573,449
Debt Service:
Issuance Costs 60,000 60,000 60,000

Total Expenditures 2,759,308 2,759,308 10,899,036

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 82,870 82,870 (548,531)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Other Bonds Issued 3,348,000 3,348,000 3,348,000
Transfers In 81,038

Total Other Financing Sources 3,348,000 3,348,000 3,429,038

Net Change in Fund Balances 3,430,870 3,430,870 2,880,507

Fund Balance (Deficit) at Beginning of Year 2,939,130 2,939,130 3,486,240

Fund Balance (Deficit) at End of Year 6,370,000$ 6,370,000$ 6,366,747$

(Concluded)

Capital Project Funds

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(Continued)
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Variance with
Final Budget Actual Final Budget

Data Communication Fund
Total Revenues and Other Sources 18,000$ 18,000$ $

Total Expenditures and Other Uses 18,000 18,000

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30 $ $ $

Student Wellness and Success Grant
Total Revenues and Other Sources 393,360$ 393,360$ $

Total Expenditures and Other Uses 393,360 393,360

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30 $ $ $

Other State Grants Fund
Total Revenues and Other Sources 92,479$ 90,030$ (2,449)$

Total Expenditures and Other Uses 93,100 59,469 33,631

Net Change in Fund Balances (621) 30,561 31,182

Fund Balance, July 1 621 621
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance, June 30 $ 31,182$ 31,182$

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance Budget (Non GAAP Basis) and Actual

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Variance with
Final Budget Actual Final Budget

ESSER CARES Act Fund
Total Revenues and Other Sources 1,797,895$ 876,002$ (921,893)$

Total Expenditures and Other Uses 1,797,895 876,002 921,893

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, July 1
Prior Year Encumbrances

Fund Balance, June 30 $ $ $

Coronavirus Relief Fund
Total Revenues and Other Sources 433,647$ 431,778$ (1,869)$

Total Expenditures and Other Uses 433,647 431,778 1,869

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, July 1
Prior Year Encumbrances

Fund Balance, June 30 $ $ $

IDEA, Part B Grant Fund
Total Revenues and Other Sources 2,349,601$ 1,994,009$ (355,592)$

Total Expenditures and Other Uses 2,463,838 2,108,235 355,603

Net Change in Fund Balances (114,237) (114,226) 11

Fund Balance, July 1
Prior Year Encumbrances 114,237 114,237

Fund Balance, June 30 $ 11$ 11$

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance Budget (Non GAAP Basis) and Actual

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Beavercreek City School District, Ohio
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  
 FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
 BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
 ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
Board of Education 
Beavercreek City School District  
3040 Kemp Road 
Beavercreek, Ohio 45431 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Beavercreek City School 
District (the “District”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated December 28, 2021. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.



 

  

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

  Clark, Schaefer, Hackett & Co. 
 
Springfield, Ohio  
December 28, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
 EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
 OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
 OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
Board of Education 
Beavercreek City School District  
3040 Kemp Road 
Beavercreek, Ohio 45431 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited Beavercreek City School District’s (the “District”) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. The 
District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial 
statements. We issued our report thereon dated December 28, 2021, which contained unmodified 
opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on 
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required 
by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 

  Clark, Schaefer, Hackett & Co. 
 
Springfield, Ohio  
December 28, 2021 
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Federal
Federal Agency/ Assistance Pass Though
Pass Through Agency/ Listing Identifying Federal Non-Cash
Program Title Number Number Expenditures Expenditures

U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through Ohio Department of Education:

Child Nutrition Cluster:
   School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A 28,796$         -$               
   COVID-19 - School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A 1,694             -                 
   National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 1,298,134      -                 
   COVID-19 - National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 111,277         -                 
   Non-Cash Assistance (Food Distribution)
      National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A -                 284,981         

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 1,439,901      284,981         

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 1,439,901      284,981         

U.S. Department of Defense:
Direct Program

Department of Defense Impact Aid (Supplement, CWSD, BRAC) 12.558 N/A 269,239         -                 
Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program 12.800 N/A 276,876         -                 

Total U.S. Department of Defense 546,115         -                 

U.S. Department of Education:
Direct Program

Impact Aid 84.041A N/A 1,718,529      -                 

Passed through Ohio Department of Education:

Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies 84.010A S010A210035 337,428         -                 
84.010 S010A200035 16,753           -                 

354,181         -                 

Special Education Cluster (IDEA):
Special Education Grants to States 84.027A H027A210111 1,508,576      -                 

84.027 H027A200111 271,566         -                 
Special Education Preschool Grants 84.173A H173A210119 31,360           -                 

84.173 H173A200119 10,090           -                 
Total Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 1,821,592      -                 

English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365A S365A210035 32,025           -                 
84.365 S365A200035 2,040             -                 

34,065           -                 

Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84.367A S367A210034 53,469           -                 
84.367 S367A200034 2,395             -                 

55,864           -                 

Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 84.424A S424A210036 16,516           -                 

Education Stabilization Fund:
COVID-19 - Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief I 84.425D S425D200035 350,208         -                 
COVID-19 - Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief II 84.425D S425D210035 68,066           -                 

418,274         -                 

Total U.S. Department of Education 4,419,021      -                 

U.S. Department of the Treasury:
Passed through State of Ohio Office of Budget and Management:

COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund - Suburban - Low Poverty 21.019 N/A 359,317         -                 

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury 359,317         -                 

Total Federal Assistance 6,764,354$    284,981$       

BEAVERCREEK CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
GREENE COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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BEAVERCREEK CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GREENE COUNTY 
 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 
 
 
NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal 
award activity of Beavercreek City School District (the District) under programs of the federal government 
for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information on this Schedule is prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the District, it is not intended to and does not present 
the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the District. 
 
 
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the cash basis of accounting. Such expenditures 
are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
wherein certain types of expenditures may or may not be allowable or may be limited as to 
reimbursement. The District has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance.   
 
 
NOTE C - NUTRITION CLUSTER 
 
The District commingles cash receipts from the U.S. Department of Agriculture with similar State grants. 
When reporting expenditures on this Schedule, the District assumes it expends federal monies first. 
 
 
NOTE D - FOOD DISTRIBUTION PROGRAM 
 
The District reports commodities consumed on the Schedule at the fair value. The District allocated 
donated food commodities to the respective program that benefitted from the use of those donated food 
commodities. 
 
 
NOTE E - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Certain Federal programs require the District to contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to support 
the Federally-funded programs. The District has met its matching requirements. The Schedule does not 
include the expenditure of non-Federal matching funds. 
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Beavercreek City School District 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 
 
Financial Statements 

 
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weakness(es) identified? None noted 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified not 

considered to be material weakness(es)? None noted 
 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? None noted 
 

Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 Material weakness(es) identified? None noted 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified not 

considered to be material weakness(es)? None noted 
 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance 
 with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? None noted 
 
Identification of major programs: 

  
   Nutrition Cluster:  
    ALN 10.553 – School Breakfast Program 
    ALN 10.555 – National School Lunch Program 
 
    ALN 84.425D – Education Stabilization Fund: 
                                COVID-19 - Elementary and Secondary  
                                School Emergency Relief I & II 

    
Dollar threshold to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 
 
 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
 None noted 
 
 
Section III – Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
 None noted 
 
 
Section IV – Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
 
 None noted 
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88 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215
Phone: 614-466-4514 or 800-282-0370

This report is a matter of public record and is available online at 

www.ohioauditor.gov

BEAVERCREEK CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

 GREENE COUNTY

AUDITOR OF STATE OF OHIO CERTIFICATION

This is a true and correct copy of the report, which is required to be filed pursuant to Section 
117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in the Office of the Ohio Auditor of State in Columbus, 
Ohio.

Certified for Release 2/24/2022
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